FOLKESTONE AND HYTHE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes for the meeting of the Council held at the Council Chamber - Civic Centre Folkestone on Wednesday, 21 July 2021

Present: Councillors Miss Susan Carey, John Collier, Laura Davison, Ray Field, Gary Fuller, Peter Gane, Clive Goddard, David Godfrey, Anthony Hills (Vice-Chair), Mrs Jennifer Hollingsbee, Nicola Keen, Michelle Keutenius, Jim Martin, Philip Martin (Chairman), Connor McConville, Jackie Meade, Ian Meyers, David Monk, Terence Mullard, Stuart Peall, Tim Prater, Patricia Rolfe, Rebecca Shoob, Georgina Treloar, Lesley Whybrow, David Wimble and John Wing

Apologies for Absence: Councillors Mrs Ann Berry and Douglas Wade

12. **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest at the meeting.

13. Minutes

The minutes of the meetings held on 19 February, 16 September, 21 October and 25 November 2020, and 24 February 2021 were submitted, approved, and signed by the Chairman.

14. Chairman's Communications

The Chairman gave the following communications:

"Since the easing of some of the COVID restrictions, I have visited a number of businesses in the Folkestone area, to see how they have been coping during such difficult times. I have been pleased and well assured that they all appreciated the funding received through both local and central Government grants etc.

I attended the Canada Day Memorial service, at the invitation of the Folkestone Town Council Mayor where I met several veterans and British legion members.

I was also pleased to be at the Armed forces day raising of the flag ceremony at the Civic Centre.

I was invited to celebrate the 60th Anniversary of the Kent Coast Electrification and had an enjoyable trip on the train to Sandwich where I learned a great deal about railway history, which I wouldn't have had an opportunity to do otherwise.

Included in other recent events was the Normandy landings anniversary at Folkestone Memorial Gardens".

15. **Petitions**

There were no petitions to be presented.

16. Questions from the Public

Council - 21 July 2021

The questions asked, including supplementary questions (if any), and the answers given are set out in Schedule 1, appended to these minutes.

17. Questions from Councillors

The questions asked, including supplementary questions (if any), and the answers given are set out in Schedule 2, appended to these minutes.

18. Announcements of the Leader of the Council

The Leader gave the following announcements:

"Thank you Chairman, and good evening to you all.

It is nice to be meeting in person again.

You, like me, will be appalled at the deterioration of the waste service and I can only echo Councillor Peall's apology to all of our residents that have been affected and assure you and them that we are doing everything that we can to try and resolve the situation. Unfortunately, just as we thought that things were going to improve, self-isolation among Veolia's staff increased dramatically, and that, along with the country wide driver shortage means that we have had to suspend the garden waste collection service to give priority to the main household collection streams. Not a situation that we want to be in, so we will have to continue to try to find solutions as quickly as we can. I thank Councillor Jim Martin for his support.

On a lighter front, I am happy to report that our Revenues and Benefits teams have been short listed in 4 out of the 5 categories for the Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation Awards (IRRV), wonderful recognition of the sterling work they have done, and continue to do.

Another piece of good news is that we have achieved the Gold Award under the Armed Forces Covenant Scheme. Well done to the team.

Also, the Triennial is due to start on 22 July, and will be extended until 2 November, to bring business to schools. There is some interesting art work on display.

Finally, the NHS have announced that this coming Saturday, from 10am, the Folca vaccination centre will be open for anyone over 18 to drop in to get either their first or second jab. I will ask you to pass this information on, especially to our younger adults.

Councillor McConville, on behalf of the opposition, responded to the Leader's announcements and advised that he echoed the Leader's feelings on the Veolia situation. He suggested that more proactive communications would be helpful for residents. Information should be available on the council's website, ensuring

Council - 21 July 2021

honesty and openness. Residents would then be more understanding. He looked forward to the Task and Finish meeting scheduled for Monday. He echoed the Leader's congratulations to the Revenues and Benefits Team, and the praised the success in the Armed Forces Covenant Scheme. He then advised he had now received his second jab. He added that Folca were also offering a drop in for second vaccinations on this coming Friday (23 July).

The Leader then replied that he agreed with regard to the point on communications, but he added that it was a fast moving situation, and communications could quickly become out of date.

Proposed by Councillor Monk, Seconded by Councillor Mrs Hollingsbee; and

RESOLVED:

That the announcements of the Leader be noted.

19. Opposition Business

The Leader of the Labour Group, Councillor McConville, set out his Opposition Business which asked the council to address fly tipping across the district by means of amending the Bulky Waste Collection Scheme.

Proposed by Councillor McConville, Seconded by Councillor Keen; and

RESOLVED:

That Option (b) (refer the issue to Cabinet, for their observations before deciding whether to make a decision on the issue) be agreed for the business below.

To request that cabinet consider a report that looks to address fly tipping across the district by means of amending the Bulky Waste Collection Scheme. This report should consider a number of options weighed against allocation of resources. These options should include:

- A minimum of 1 free collection per year for households in receipt of
- Council tax support
- Housing benefit
- Income related job seekers allowance
- Pension credit (guaranteed rate)
- Income support
- Universal credit (the housing element)
- A reduced rate for additional collections (capped per year) for those in receipt of the support schemes listed previous.
- Improved signposting on the council website to other organisations that may be able to help residents remove unwanted household items.

 Consider the appropriateness of the current pricing structure of the bulky waste collection as compared to other neighbouring authorities.

(Voting figures: 27 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions).

20. Motions on Notice

There were no motions on notice at the meeting.

21. Pay policy statement 2021/22

The report considered the recommendation from the Personnel Committee and presented an updated pay policy statement for 2021/22 for approval.

Proposed by Councillor Monk, Seconded by Councillor Mrs Hollingsbee; and

RESOLVED:

- 1. That report A/21/08 be received and noted.
- 2. That the recommendations of the Personnel Committee be approved.
- 3. That the updated Pay Policy Statement appended to the report for 2021/22 be approved under S38(1) of the Localism Act 2011.

(Voting figures: 27 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions).

22. Report to Council on a key decision made in accordance with the constitution's call-in and urgency rule

The constitution provides that, when an urgent key decision is made by the Cabinet, for which any delay in implementation, likely to be caused by the call-in process, would seriously prejudice the Council's or public interest, then the 'Call-in Rules of Procedure', Part 6.3, rules 1-6 do not apply. Key decisions, taken as a matter of urgency, must be reported to the next available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency.

As part of the debate, Councillor Monk gave his answer to Councillor question 15, as the time limit had expired during the Councillor Questions item.

Proposed by Councillor Monk, Seconded by Councillor Mrs Hollingsbee;

RESOLVED:

That report A/21/09 be received and noted.

(Voting figures: 29 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions).

23. Report from the Independent Remuneration Panel on Members' Allowances and Expenses

The report recommended the proposals from the Council's Independent Remuneration Panel with the comments of the Governance Working Group that the Members' Allowance Scheme of Folkestone and Hythe District Council be amended.

Proposed by Councillor Prater, Seconded by Councillor Godfrey; and

RESOLVED:

- 1. That report A/21/10 be received and noted.
- 2. That the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and the views of the Governance Working Group as set out in paragraph 2.3 (a) (h) of the report be noted, and that the Members' Allowance Scheme be amended to adopt the views of the Working Group as set out in bold in paragraph 2.3 (a) (h) of the report
- 3. That the amendments come into effect on 22 July 2021.
- 4. That the Parental Leave Policy as set out in Appendix 2 be adopted.

(Voting figures: 29 for, 0 against, 0 abstentions).

24. Romney Marsh Coastal Destination including Beach Chalet Project

The report sought Full Council approval for additional funding to deliver the Cabinet approved proposal of the Romney Marsh Coastal Destination including beach Chalet project. The project will deliver new beach huts, toilet facilities including a changing places toilet, a concession/café, upgraded car parking facilities and public realm improvements that will link with New Romney Town Councils "The Green" area to create a true visitor destination.

Proposed by Councillor Collier, Seconded by Councillor Wimble;

RESOLVED:

- 1. That report A/21/11 be received and noted.
- 2. That the recommendations of Cabinet Report C/21/13 (Attached as appendix 4 of the report) be noted. .
- 3. That additional borrowing of £518k to be added to the Council's Capital Programme.

(Voting figures: 20 for, 0 against, 7 abstentions).